
 

NOTE TO PERSONS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS: 
The Town of Canton does not discriminate on the basis of disability. Individuals who need auxiliary aids or an interpreter at a Town 

meeting must notify the appropriate department in advance of the meeting as soon as they are able. 

  
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 13, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. 

Community Center, Room B 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, Connecticut 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 
ROLL CALL: 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. File #2016-3; 13-15 High Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcel 2960013; Zone R-1; Variance from 
Section 3.4.E.2, Minimum Yard Setbacks for Accessory Structures; Reduction of front yard setback 
by 14.3 feet for an 672 +/- square foot detached garage; Charles Arrasate, applicant/owner 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS: 
 
1. File #2016-3; 13-15 High Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcel 2960013; Zone R-1; Variance from 

Section 3.4.E.2, Minimum Yard Setbacks for Accessory Structures; Reduction of front yard setback 
by 14.3 feet for an 672 +/- square foot detached garage; Charles Arrasate, applicant/owner 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
1. File #2016-4; 15 North Street; Assessor’s Map 38; Parcel 3890015; Zone B; Section 9.7, Motor 

Vehicle Location Approval, Used Car and Repairer License; Ron Llewellyn, applicant; TABCO 
Properties, LLC, owner 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
 
1. Approval of Meeting Minutes from May 9, 2016 

2. Staff Report 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 

















































 - 1 - 

  
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, May 9, 2016 at 7:30 p.m. 

Community Center, Room F 
40 Dyer Avenue, Canton, Connecticut 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Brainard called the Regular Meeting of May 9, 2016 to order at 7:32 p.m.  
 
PRESENT: Robert Brainard, Gary Adajian, Guerry Dotson, Christopher Kerr, Walter LeGeyt, Bob Celmer 
(Alternate) and Lucien Rucci (Alternate). 
 
ABSENT:  None 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Zoning Enforcement Officer Emily Anyzeski and Recording Secretary Jennifer Scott 
 
Mr. Dotson arrived at 7:35 p.m. 
 
A quorum of the Commission is present. 
 
MODIFICATION TO THE AGENDA: None 
 
REMARKS BY CHAIR: None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

READING OF THE LEGAL NOTICE: Read by Mr. Brainard 
 
1. File #2015-11; 145 Cherry Brook Road; Assessor’s Map 322; Parcel 1850145; Zone R-2; 

Variance from Section 3.4.E.2, Minimum Yard Setbacks for Accessory Structures; Reduction 
of side yard setback by seven feet for a 576 +/- square foot detached garage; Renata Maglietti, 
applicant; Renata and Russell Maglietti, owners 
 
Commissioners Seated: Robert Brainard, Gary Adajian, Guerry Dotson, Christopher Kerr, and 
Walter LeGeyt 
 
This Public Hearing for File #2015-11: 145 Cherry Brook Road is a continuation from the February 11, 
2016 Public Hearing. Mr. and Mrs. Maglietti’s contractor, Mr. Peter Hiza, presented the application for 
variance on their behalf. Mr. Hiza stated that the Maglietti’s wish to build an accessory structure on 
their property that will cross into the side yard setback by 2.5 feet. He noted that their original 
application requested a 7 ft variance because they were working under the incorrect assumption that 
the proposed garage was a part of the principal structure. Because the garage will be detached, they 
have revised their request to a 2.5 foot variance upon reviewing the setback requirements for 
Accessory Structures. Mr. Hiza presented the members with an updated survey of the property which 
includes detailed measurements from the proposed location of the garage to various points on the 
property including the house, stone wall, well, and right of way. He also presented several photos of 
the property and the area for which they plan to build. 
  



 - 2 - 

Mr. Hiza stated that the hardships in this case are that (a) only 1/3 of this property’s 2 acres is 
buildable flat land, (b) they are limited by the location of the well, and (c) they are limited by the 
location of the right of way going through the property.  
 
The members inquired why the proposed garage could not be shifted so that it would no longer 
impinge on the setback zone. Mr. Hiza explained that the area to the front of where they have 
proposed building the garage is needed for the Maglietti’s to turn their vehicles and the area to the 
rear is sloped. In addition, the right of way encroaches on the Maglietti’s property the further back you 
go. The members suggested relocating the proposed garage to the right towards the well and 
repositioning the well beneath the garage floor. Mr. Maglietti is a licensed plumber and explained that 
this would not be a practical solution because of the difficulty involved with repairing and maintaining 
the well in that location.  
 
As an alternative, the members offered the option of excavating the foundation of an old tobacco barn 
no longer in use on the property and building the garage there. Mrs. Maglietti said that area is steeply 
sloped and would result in additional construction costs. Mr. Brainard explained that unfortunately, 
financial impact can not be considered when voting on a variance such as this. Mrs. Maglietti 
explained that building in that location would also compromise the roots of a historical paper birch 
tree on the property. Another course of action that was put forward was to slightly modify the footprint 
of the garage in a way that would avoid any impact on the setback. Mr. Hiza said that the design of 
the garage as proposed is what is needed for the owners to be able to store their vast tool and car 
collection. 
 
There was extensive discussion and examination of the issue of the right of way that exists along and 
through the Maglietti’s property. The maps presented do not indicate the width of the right of way 
making it unclear whether the garage, as proposed, will impinge upon it. Mr. Brainard said that 
regardless of the issue with the right of way, it has to be determined if enough hardship exists to 
warrant a variance. He said that because there are other options on the property where the garage 
can be constructed, it is difficult to say that this is a unique case. He added that the applicant would 
not be denied reasonable use of the property if the garage were moved. The possibility of moving the 
garage 2 feet south was introduced. At this location, the garage would butt up against the well, would 
be within the setback requirement, and would be further from the right of way than as currently 
proposed. Mr. Hiza said that Mr. and Mrs. Maglietti are going for a certain aesthetic while they seek to 
enhance their property and maximize its use. Mr. Maglietti restated his desire for the variance to be 
granted as per their request.  
 
MOTION:  Mr. Adajian moved to close the Public Hearing for File #2015-11; 145 Cherry Brook Road. 
Mr. LeGeyt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously, 5-0-0. 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
PUBLIC HEARING ACTIONS:  
 
1. File #2015-11; 145 Cherry Brook Road; Assessor’s Map 322; Parcel 1850145; Zone R-2; 

Variance from Section 3.4.E.2, Minimum Yard Setbacks for Accessory Structures; Reduction 
of side yard setback by seven feet for a 576 +/- square foot detached garage; Renata Maglietti, 
applicant; Renata and Russell Maglietti, owners 

 
Commissioners Seated: Robert Brainard, Gary Adajian, Guerry Dotson, Christopher Kerr, and 
Walter LeGeyt 
 
The Commission determined that several alternatives exist where the design plan or location of the 
proposed garage could be changed and the applicants would still be allowed reasonable use of their 
property while conforming to current zoning regulations. They unanimously agreed that sufficient 
hardship was not proven in this case. 
 



 - 3 - 

MOTION:  Mr. Brainard moved that for File #2015-11; 145 Cherry Brook Road a side yard setback 
variance in the amount of 2.5 feet for the construction of a 24ft x 24ft detached garage in the location 
as shown on the Map entitled “Mr. and Mrs. Maglietti, Lot 1, Cherry Brook Road, Canton” be granted. 
The reasons for granting this variance are the topography to the rear of the lot and the location of the 
well. Mr. Dotson seconded the motion. The motion failed by a unanimous vote of, 0-5-0. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Consideration of possible refund for File #2016-1; 20 Canton Springs Road; Assessor’s Map 

35; Parcel 1640020; Zone1; Appeal the decision of the Zoning Enforcement Officer from  the 
Observation of Violation regarding unapproved vehicular storage, dated January 15, 2016; 
Steven Lingenheld, applicant; Kings Highway Associates, LLC, owner 
 
Mr. Brainard said that Mr. Lingenheld was advised by the Town Planner that should his appeal be 
upheld, it is the practice of the ZBA to refund any fees paid for by the applicant. However, a 
successful appeal is not a factor that is considered in the Town Ordinance for refunding fees. The 
members agreed that if the applicant was informed by an authority of the Town that the fees would be 
refunded to him, they should in fact be refunded. In addition, Mr. Brainard reported that it is not 
uncommon for the Planning and Zoning Commission to reduce or waive fees at their discretion. Ms. 
Anyzeski said that when fees have been reduced or waived in the past by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, they identify in their motion which criteria in the fee ordinance has been met. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Brainard moved that for File #2016-1; 20 Canton Springs Road; the owner, Kings 
Highway Associates, LLC be refunded the $160 fee they paid to appeal the Zoning Enforcement 
Officer’s decision. Mr. Dotson seconded the motion, which passed by a unanimous vote of, 5-0-0. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Meeting Minutes from March 14, 2016 and April 11, 2016 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Adajian moved to approve the minutes from the March 14, 2016 Regular Meeting as 
presented. Mr. Kerr seconded the motion, which passed unanimously, 5-0-0. 
 
MOTION:  Mr. Adajian moved to approve the minutes from the April 11, 2016 Regular Meeting as 
amended. Mr. LeGeyt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously, 5-0-0. 
 

2. Staff Report 
a. 12 Town Bridge Road – Ms. Anyzeski reported that she has recently issued an observation of 

violation letter to the owner of 12 Town Bridge Rd due to the presence of a shipping container on 
the property. She stated that a complaint from Mr. Dotson prompted her investigation of the 
property and she is seeking guidance from the ZBA members on how to proceed with the case. 
Ms. Anyzeski said that the owner has spray painted the shipping container green, uses it for 
storage and considers it to be a shed. The owner is arguing that it has been on his property since 
2006 without any complaints and that the shipping container aligns with the modern character of 
his home and property. Ms. Anyzeski said that even if the ZBA determines that the shipping 
container could be considered a shed or an accessory structure in this case, the owner would still 
need to obtain a permit because it is over 200 square feet. Mr. Brainard said that unfortunately, 
there are no regulations in place regarding shipping containers. In addition, if the shipping 
container has been there over 3 years without any complaints, it becomes permissible so long as 
pursuant to the regulations, it can legally be on the property with a permit. 

 
AJOURNMENT:   
 
MOTION:  Mr. Dotson moved to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals at 9:15 p.m. 
Mr. Adajian seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously, 5-0-0. 
 


